
 

General Business                                       Lower Saucon Township                                       October 21, 2015 

& Developer                                                     Council Agenda                                                        7:00 p.m. 
 

  

I. OPENING 

 A. Call to Order 

 B. Roll Call 

 C. Pledge of Allegiance 

 D. Announcement of Executive Session (if applicable) 

 E. Public Comment Procedure 

   

II. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS  
 

III DEVELOPER ITEMS 

 
IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. LVIP VII Traffic Study Review Proposal 
B. Non-Uniform Contract 

 

V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 
A. Approval of October 7, 2015 Minutes 

B. Approval of September 2015 Financial Reports 

     

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS   

 A. Township Manager 

 B. Council 

 C. Solicitor 

 D. Engineer 

 E. Planner  
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 
Next Planning Commission Meeting:  October 22, 2015 

Next Saucon Rail Trail Oversight Commission Meeting:  October 26, 2015 @ CB   

Next Council Meeting:  October 28, 2015 @ 6:00 p.m. 

Next Park & Rec Meeting:  November 2, 2015 
Next EAC Meeting:  November 10, 2015 

Next Saucon Valley Partnership:  November 11, 2015 @ LST  
Next Zoning Hearing Board Meeting:  November 16, 2015 

 

 

www.lowersaucontownship.org 



 

General Business                                             Lower Saucon Township                                       October 21, 2015 

& Developer                                                          Council Minutes                                                        7:00 P.M. 
 

 
I. OPENING 

CALL TO ORDER:  The General Business & Developer meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council 

was called to order on Wednesday, October 21, 2015 at 7:00 P.M., at Lower Saucon Township, 3700 Old 

Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, PA with Mr. Ron Horiszny, presiding.     

ROLL CALL:  Present:  Ron Horiszny, President; Thomas Maxfield, Vice President; Dave Willard and 

Priscilla deLeon, Council members; Jack Cahalan, Township Manager; Leslie Huhn, Assistant Manager; 

Linc Treadwell, Township.  Absent:  Glenn Kern, Council Member; Solicitor; Judy Stern Goldstein, 

Township Planner; and Kevin Chimics, Township Engineer. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

  

 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) 

Mr. Horiszny said Council did meet in Executive Session prior to tonight’s meeting to discuss the non-

uniform employee’s labor agreement and this will be followed up on the agenda item. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN AGENDA ITEMS 

 Mr. Horiszny said if you are on the agenda, you have Council and Staff’s undivided attention.  If you do 

choose to speak, we ask that you use one of the microphones.  He asks that you give your fellow public the 

courtesy of the floor.  We ask that you state your name for the record so the transcriptionist knows who is 

speaking in the minutes.  If you are up at the table, please speak into the microphone.   

 

II. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS – None  

 

III. DEVELOPER ITEMS – None 

 

IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. LVIP VII TRAFFIC STUDY REVIEW PROPOSAL 

Mr. Cahalan said Ryan Kern from Barry Isett Associates provided a scope of work on the review of 

the traffic study that was prepared by Hanover Engineering for the LVIP VII parcels that border 

Easton Road.  The cost would be $4,500.00, which indicated it could be split between Hellertown 

Borough and Lower Saucon.  Hellertown approved this and agreed to pay half of the cost.  Mr. 

Horiszny said we should point out there could be as many as three driveways, although earlier they 

said one or none.  Mr. Cahalan said if you want to retain him, we can provide him with the 

information coming in from Jim Milot. 

 

Matt McClarin asked what this study is actually going to accomplish?  Mr. Horiszny said hopefully 

to get the City of Bethlehem to minimize traffic impact and to continue to add buffers for the 

citizens who live there.   

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to approve the LVIP LVII traffic study review proposal from Barry Isett 

& Associates per the information sent to us. 

SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mr. Kern – Absent) 

  

B. NON-UNIFORM CONTRACT 

Mr. Horiszny said the Non-Uniform Employee Association has ratified it’s contract and it is now 

before Council for approval.  Mr. Horiszny provided a summary of the non-uniform contract which 

will run from May 1, 2015 to April 30, 2019, which provides increases in compensation of 3.75% 

in 2015, 3.25% in 2016, 3.25% in 2017, and 3% in 2018 with a $1.00 an hour pay increase for the 

Roadmaster, Mechanic and Receptionist; an employee pension contribution of 1% in 2016, 1.25% 

in 2017, 1.5% in 2018 as well as group health insurance contributions and an increase in office visit 

co-pays to $20.00 with revisions to bereavement leave, sick leave and scheduling time off.   



General Business & Developer Meeting    

October 21, 2015 
 

Page 2 of 4 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved to approve the Non-Uniform Contract and authorize the Township 

Manager to execute it on behalf of Council. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

 Mrs. deLeon said this is a very generous offer and she feels the raises are very high.  This contract 

expired in 2011 and no one wanted to meet with us.  In May they dropped the Union and came up 

with their own Employee Association.  She was adamant about retroactive pay.  She can’t support 

this.  Mr. Maxfield said the raise still puts them below their counterparts in other municipalities.  It 

may be generous to some, but by others it’s just bringing things up to snuff.  Mrs. deLeon said we 

have wonderful employees and they do a good job.  Mr. Willard suggested an amendment to the 

motion after the words “as well as group health insurance contributions”, to add the words “for 

dependents”. 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny amended his motion to approve the Non-Uniform Contract as well as group 

health insurance contributions for dependents and authorize the Township Manager to execute 

on behalf of Council. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield amended his second 

ROLL CALL: 3-1 (Mrs. deLeon – No; Mr. Kern – Absent) 

 

V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 

 A. APPROVAL OF OCTOBER 7, 2015 COUNCIL MINUTES 

Mr. Horiszny said the October 7, 2015 minutes are ready for Council approval.  

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of the October 7, 2015 Council minutes, with corrections. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

ROLL CALL: 3-1 (Mrs. deLeon – No; Mr. Kern – Absent) 

 

B. APPROVAL OF SEPTEMBER 2015 FINANCIAL REPORTS 

 Mr. Horiszny said the September 2015 financial reports are ready for Council approval.  Mr. 

Willard said it’s helpful to see the statement of revenues and expenditures and expenditures are 

well-controlled. 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval of the September 2015 financial reports. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mr. Kern – Absent) 

 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 Mr. Gordon Gress, 2371 Black River Road asked about the Black River storm water project.  Mr. 

Cahalan said there is still no engineering plan.  When that comes to the Township, Council will 

look at it and get a final estimate of cost and see how they want to proceed.  The construction will 

not be until 2016.  Mrs. deLeon asked why the delay?  Mr. Cahalan said Hanover Engineering is 

working on the plans.  Mrs. deLeon asked Mr. Cahalan to talk to Hanover and put a deadline on it 

so they move it along.  Mr. Cahalan will get a status report. 

 Mr. Gene Boyer, 2161 Saucon Avenue, said the Black River Road project, is what we borrowed 

$500,000.00.  Mr. Cahalan said yes.  Mr. Boyer asked how can you say we’ll get an estimate of the 

cost.  Mr. Cahalan said a final estimate of the cost.  The engineer gave us an estimate and we have 

to see what the engineering costs are.  Mr. Boyer said he can’t believe it’s been 2 years the 

engineering firm hasn’t moved on it.  Mr. Cahalan said Council only gave the go-ahead within the 

last year.  We told Council construction would begin in 2016, there’s no delay, we are on schedule.   

 Mr. Boyer said Mr. Willard made the comment about the monthly financials, and that it was about 

75% of the budget.  Mr. Willard said this is through September, so anything 75% or over on 

revenue is good and anything 75% or under on expenditures, is a benefit and it looks like we are 

well under the spending categories.   

 Mr. Matt McClarin, Riverside Drive, said he came here three years ago and asked what our 

financial future looks like if we don’t have the landfill and if we are working to correct that 

problem.  He tried to do a comparison of surrounding Townships that would match LST and said 

nothing really matched besides Lehigh Township.  He went over some statistics and numbers 

between Lehigh Township and LST.  Mrs. deLeon said she doesn’t think we’ve taken in $2 million 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

October 21, 2015 
 

Page 3 of 4 

every year for 15 years.  Don’t say $2 million, it’s only been like $1.4 million and that’s misleading 

to people.  Mr. McClarin said there’s still the question of a $7 million LST budget versus a $4 

million Lehigh Township budget.     

 Mr. Boyer said what typically are the pay increases for other Townships?  Mr. Horiszny said in 

general, surrounding Townships are $4 to $7 more per hour than us for wage rates for non-

uniformed employees.  Mr. Horiszny said if it would have been generous, we would have given 

them the $7 to match Hellertown.  It’s a matter of what your generosity definition is, Priscilla 

thought it was generous and she voted accordingly.  Mr. Horiszny said our job is to keep it as low 

as possible for the citizens, to protect the Township’s money, and to protect our employees to make 

sure they work and give us good service. 

 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS  

A. TOWNSHIP MANAGER – No report 

B.     COUNCIL 

Mr. Maxfield – No report 

Mrs. deLeon  
 She said the SVP met on October 14

th
 about considering a paid person to oversee the 

various community events.  It was decided it was premature to do that and there are 

volunteers out there to help us. 

 She said she attended the Saucon Valley Spirit Parade on Sunday and had a great day. 

 She said on October 28
th
, we have our budget meeting. 

 She said on October 19
th
, a group of organizations held a meeting at Leithsville Fire Hall 

on the PennEast Pipeline.  PennEast is really not telling anyone what is going on.  She’s 

recommending everyone intervenes with FERC by October 29
th
. 

 She received copies of the Conservancy’s minutes from August and September.  She said 

there is a Special Events policy and they think we never did the policy.  As President, she 

filled out those events policy.  She said in September minutes it said they closed the gift 

shop due to the Township’s Special Events Policy which isn’t completely true.  Mr. 

Cahalan said we had our insurance consultant look at the events the SVC was holding and 

their opinion was unless they had adequate insurance, the Township shouldn’t approve 

letting them hold the events in the building we are leasing to them.  Mrs. deLeon asked Mr. 

Cahalan to send them a letter defending our position of the Special Events Policy.   

 She said she got an agenda on Tuesday for the P/C on Thursday night.  That’s two days.  

Is there any way we could coordinate sending that agenda better to get it to the public.  

We get the Council agenda on Friday and our meeting is Wednesday. 

 Mr. Kern – Absent 

Mr. Willard 
 He said he, Mr. Cahalan, Mr. Horiszny and Ms. Gorman meet this afternoon to prepare for 

the next meeting on October 26
th
 with the Fire Chief’s.   

 He said the last Citizen’s Committee meeting is October 29
th
.  

 He said he, Mr. Maxfield, Mr. Horiszny and Chris Garges met with the residents regarding 

the PPL project along Meadows Road, and the project began today.   

 He said he would still like to pursue getting a Jr. Council member this year and he will 

meet with someone at the Saucon Valley High School.  Mrs. deLeon said she would attend 

with him. 

Mr. Horiszny 
 He said he went on the hayride for the tour of the Woodland Hills Preserve.  

 He said on Monday, October 26
th
 the LST Historical Society will have a fundraiser at Taps. 

D. SOLICITOR – No report 

E. PLANNER – No report 

F. ENGINEER – No report 

  



General Business & Developer Meeting    

October 21, 2015 
 

Page 4 of 4 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for adjournment.  The time was 7:47 p.m. 

SECOND BY:  Mr. Horiszny 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mr. Kern – Absent) 

 

Submitted by: 

 

 

________________________________    __________________________________ 

Jack Cahalan       Ron Horiszny     

Township Manager      Council President 

 


